
SCAPPOOSE PLANNING COMMISSION 
Council Chambers at City Hall 
33568 East Columbia Avenue 

Thursday, October 27, 2016, at 7:00 p.m. 

1.0 CALL TO ORDER 
Chair Kulp called the Scappoose Planning Commission workshop to order at 7 :00 p.m. 

2.0 ROLL CALL 
Planning Commission: 
Carmen Kulp Chair 
Bill Blank Commissioner 
Bruce Shoemaker 
Scott Jensen 
Derrick Vargason 
Rita Bernhard 

Commissioner 
Commissioner 
Commissioner 
Commissioner 

Excused: Commissioner Jim Dahla 

3.0 APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
3.1 September 22nd, 2016 meeting 

Staff: 
Laurie Oliver City Planner 
Elizabeth Happala Office Administrator III 

Commissioner Blank & Chair Kulp submitted changes. 
Commissioner Blank moved and Commissioner Vargason seconded the motion to approve the September 22, 
2016 Planning Commission meeting minutes. Motioned passed (5-0). 
AYES: Chair Kulp, Commissioner Blank, Commissioner Shoemaker, Commissioner Jensen, Commissioner 
Vargason and Commissioner Bernhard. 
NAYS: None 

4.0 CITIZEN INPUT 
None 

5.0 NEW BUSINESS 
5.1 Appointment of Vice Chair 

Commissioner Blank nominated to elect Commissioner Bernhard. 

Commissioner Bernhard asked if anyone else wanted to be the vice chair. 

Commissioner Shoemaker nominated Commissioner Jensen and asked him if he was open to it. 

Commissioner Jensen replied that he was open to it. 

Commissioner Bernhard stated that Commissioner Jensen could have the position. 

Page 1 of 16 Planning Commission Minutes ~ Oct. 2 7, 2016 



Chair Kulp motioned that Commissioner Jensen would be the new Vice Chair. 
AYES: Chair Kulp, Commissioner Blank, Commissioner Shoemaker, Commissioner Vargason and 
Commissioner Bernhard. 
NAYS: None 
ABSTAIN: Commissioner Jensen 

Commissioners congratulated Commissioner Jensen. 

5.2 Work Session to discuss Development Code Amendments 

City Planner Oliver asked Chair Kulp to go over her plan to begin the code reviews and changes. 

Chair Kulp stated that there are several areas they would like to focus on and have a game plan on which 
sections but she knows there are several items currently being reviewed by the City's legal counsel. 

City Planner Oliver stated there are a couple of items in the works; the sign code is being updated or possibly 
completely re-written. She has the first revision; once it is done it will be brought to the planning 
commission for review. Legal counsel also provided an example of another jurisdiction that is going through 
a similar process. The other one will be coming at the Dec. gth planning commission meeting is the 
application for the Airport Overlay zone for west of the airport which is just implementing what the UGB 
amendment ordinance had already put in place, but it had to wait until the TSP (transportation system plan) 
was adopted. Plus the Downtown Overlay zone is being looked at but the housing needs analysis could 
impact that chapter so this chapter review might have to wait until after the housing needs analysis is done. 
She is expecting that our A-1 ordinance for high density residential could change to allow for more than 8 
units in one building as it was written in the early 1990's and is very outdated. There could also be changes 
to the zoning map and could basically change all our residential ordinances. 

Commissioner Blank asked City Planner Oliver if she was working with an ad-hoc group on changes to the 
architectural review. 

City Planner Oliver replied that is a separate component. The process for the upcoming changes that occur 
from the housing needs analysis would be through joint planning commission and city council work sessions 
plus a series of open houses. 

Chair Kulp asked if that was what they are starting with. 

City Planner replied yes that is the kick-off on Nov. 7th_ During that joint work session they will come to 
explain the process and give you all a chance to express your observations, concerns and things you would 
like to see addressed. 

Chair Kulp asked if their main focus was residential which City Planner Oliver agreed was correct. 

Commissioner Bernhard asked if since the floods has the city done any changes to its development code in 
the flood areas. 

City Planner Oliver replied that development prior to the late 1990's; allowed you to build an apartment in 
the 100 year flood plain but that is now gone. Adding that the only development allowed in the l 00 year 
flood plain is a single family residential on a 20,000 sq. ft. lot or greater. Same with commercial but you'd 

Page 2of16 Planning Commission Minutes~ Oct. 27, 2016 



have to build to the flood plain ordinance with elevated foundations and a certain number of openings in the 
foundation to allow for flood waters to pass through. Adding that she is expecting significant changes to the 
flood plain ordinance to come from the federal and state levels in 2017 or 2018. 

Commissioner Bernhard stated that it would make sense to look at the flood areas closer since we've had 
floods in 1996 and 2007. 

City Planner Oliver stated that those flood zone areas will be taken out of the available buildable lands. And 
is hoping that it does not include our sensitive lands if possible. 

Commissioner Bernhard asked about the sign ordinance related to the political sign situation since there was 
some confusion with that code. 

City Planner Oliver stated that our code specifies a certain size and how many days it can be out before an 
election but our sign code should not specify political signs and should not be content based. Adding that the 
city's legal counsel is reviewing our sign code and will be removing that language. 

Commissioner Bernhard stated that the county used to have a political section for political signs. 

City Planner Oliver replied that it does take time and cost money to have someone review it and make 
changes to it. 

Commissioner Blank added that with the political elections that there should be special situations. 

City Planner Oliver stated that it would specify the size of the sign and the duration so it could be tied to an 
event but not to political language on the sign; it must be said very carefully. 

Commissioner Bernhard asked about the issues with the signs being installed in the right of way. 

City Planner Oliver replied that we do not allow for signs in the right of way; unless you have prior written 
approval by the city manager. Adding that this is all just a rundown of the items going on in the background 
and apologizes for how long amendments are taking in the review but appreciates the commissions help with 
the process. 

Chair Kulp replied that they understand and they are willing to work together on it. She then asked 
Commissioner Jensen to start off with any code items he would like to focus on. 

Commissioner Jensen stated that he would like to look at the parking regulations especially for multifamily 
codes since the issue had come up with the recent multi-family that was approved a few months ago; with the 
idea of parking requirements that are only related to the size of the apartment but does not address any visitor 
parking. Adding that 2 people typically have two vehicles and with the housing cost many people are sharing 
smaller spaces now; in the long-term it would be ideal to have less parking but for the short-term additional 
parking should be addressed. 

Commissioner Blank asked if they could look into architectural design requirements. 

City Planner Oliver asked if there was an actual model. 

Page 3of16 Planning Commission Minutes~ Oct. 27, 2016 



Commissioner Blank replied that they did have certain color chips that were required for all changes in the 
Downtown Overlay. And would also like to discuss open spaces to see how it could be worked into some of 
the development. 

Chair Kulp stated that the email from resident Patrick Russell's touched on the wetlands area that she would 
like to be reviewed; especially in the industrial zones to make sure there is a barrier protection. 

City Planner Oliver stated that it would be an ordinance related to wetlands regardless to the location or zone; 
as it is more of an overlay of the sensitive lands wetlands. 

Chair Kulp also would like to look at how to fit in commercial, industrial and residential mixed use; how to 
blend those in with easy-to-understand code language as it is hard to understand now. 

City Planner Oliver stated that there are grants available called code assistance grants through Transportation 
Growth Management (TGM); they could do a code review to see if we have any barriers to mixed use. 

Chair Kulp asked how they could go about getting it. 

City Planner Oliver stated that they just need to request it. 

Commissioner Blank asked City Planner Oliver if she knew if there were any grants coming up immediately. 

City Planner Oliver replied that it is available all the time; there is no match requirements and it might not be 
competitive. 

Chair Kulp asked if their economic development committee could apply for it. 

City Planner Oliver replied yes plus it is easy to find online to show the committee or she could get the 
information for them. Adding that the State DLCD is aware of our situation with the new OMIC building, 
the annexation of all the land and our new TSP with potential traffic. Our regional representative has been 
very supportive and was the one that actually mentioned that grant opportunity. 

Commissioner Blank stated that Scappoose is probably on the radar for other similar communities. 

City Planner Oliver agreed. 

Commissioner Shoemaker stated that he would also like a review of the parking code like Commissioner 
Jensen mentioned. Including street parking in neighborhoods; how much on-street parking is actually 
available for visitors. He sees it in other places where they have additional parking planned out for visitors 
so it does not restrict the neighborhood since many people don't use their garage for their cars anymore. 

City Planner Oliver added that most people don't expect to see a town with a bunch of cars on the street but 
in Portland, on-street parking is always being utilized. 

Commissioners Shoemaker stated he continuously hears from people in our community that we have so 
many narrow streets that become even narrower when people park on both sides. Adding that on some 
streets you might have to pull over to let another car go by. 

Page 4of16 Planning Commission Minutes~ Oct. 27, 2016 



City Planner Oliver stated that this could probably be rolled into the mixed use transportation planning code 
assistance since it still relates. 

Commissioner Shoemaker stated the other issue might fall under the health and safety code since it had to do 
with waste collection and property maintenance. He seems to get many inquiries about property nuisances. 

City Planner Oliver stated that is Title 9; we are only going to be reviewing code language in Title 17. 
Adding that commissioners could encourage residents to go to a City Council meeting and talk during the 
Public Comment section; it is very effective for those that do come. 

Commissioner Blank asked if the city had any funding for property acquisition for a municipal parking lot. 

City Planner Oliver replied no. 

Chair Kulp stated the city has property they could tum it into a parking lot. 

Commissioner Bernhard added that most municipal parking lots are near a municipal facility like a park. 

Commissioner Shoemaker also wanted a total review of our sign code but it sounds like legal counsel is 
already reviewing it. 

City Planner Oliver agreed, and she will forward legal counsel's proposed updates that she has already 
commented on and the one from the other city that she recommended; it's easy on the eyes and easy to follow 
plus the font is better. Adding that our code is really hard to read when compared to other cities. 

Commissioner Jensen added that he has read other codes in the county and agrees that our font needs to be 
updated. 

Chair Kulp added that she has read ours on-line, but when she reads other city's codes it's easier to 
understand; possibly ours was written in the 70's. 

Commissioner Bernhard stated it's written in legal-ease which City Planner Oliver agreed. 

City Planner Oliver stated when she first started with the city she tried to re-write he code book chapter by 
chapter but didn't get very far. Adding that updating the font would help; possibly an intem's job. 

Commissioner Jensen stated that someone has to have a program that could easily change it. 

City Planner Oliver replied that there is a third party code program on-line which cities could pay into it; she 
will look into it further. But it's easier once the ordinances are codified. 

Commissioner Jens en replied that Sterling Codifiers can do it which is also used by City of Clatskanie, 
Columbia City and St. Helens. 

City Planner Oliver added that this would make our City Recorders job easier; and she will look into the cost 
to see if the city could afford it. Adding that currently it is done manually; the changes are just turned into a 
PDF then the PDF is put on the website. Sterling would be a third party vendor that would handle it all; it 
would be a nice upgrade and make searches easier. 

Page 5of16 Planning Commission Minutes~ Oct. 27, 2016 



Commissioner Bernhard stated she did have a safety issue about the trees and shrubs blocking the signs; 
making it hard to read. Asking if it was something we could do in our code or if it was just enforcement. 

City Planner Oliver explained that the city does have a code compliance officer but she does not work year 
round due to funding but that might change since she issues a lot of warnings during the spring and summer; 
adding that public works could trim if it is in our public right of way but the homeowner is actually 
responsible for the upkeep of their frontage in the public right of way. 

Commissioner Blank asked if that was true for commercial as well. 

City Planner Oliver replied yes, it is the abutting property owner's responsibility. 

Commissioner Shoemaker stated that our code specifies types of approved vegetation and trees that are 
supposed to be planted but for example; when you are trying to drive out of Laurel St., you have to drive past 
the stop sign in order to safely see in both directions due to the sidewalk placement and the vegetation. 

Commissioner Blank added that most sport utility vehicles are higher but cars that are lower makes it much 
harder to safely see oncoming traffic in these areas. 

Commissioner Bernhard added that the county roads, by the new JP West Bridge, is one section that has 
gotten really bad with high grass. Adding that we may also need to work with the county in some areas. 

City Planner Oliver stated that it comes down to staff time. Adding that they do have an annexation 
application which would bring in some nice tax revenue in about a year so some of these items will get 
straightened out. We are having growing pains, every department is at capacity. She reminded the 
commissioners that many of these items could be given to the police department as nuisances; plus we have a 
traffic safety committee that our police chief heads up. 

Commissioner Blank added that he continually hears about the impending traffic that will be generated; how 
are we going to create the bi-pass roads. 

Commissioner Shoemaker added that he also gets asked about the timing of the lights for the additional 150 
vehicles. 

Commissioner Bernhard added that the conversations are everywhere; she is on the PUD budget meeting and 
they were discussing the increase as it will impact them on providing services to all the new developments. 
Plus the county has various concerns. Adding that there are a lot of companies that are interested in moving 
out here; lots of people are concerned about it. 

City Planner Oliver added that the Transportation System Plan (TSP) with the 20 year horizon did account 
for full build out around the airport; so when you think about the annexation and the industrial subdivision; 
all of that traffic has been accounted for in our TSP, although the average person will not know that. 

Commissioner Blank added that the city recently changed the construction hours; which was very popular to 
those that live near those construction sites. 

City Planner Oliver added that we always discuss construction routes at our pre-construction meetings; but 
sometimes that information is not passed onto the sub-contractors or they get lost on our side streets. 

Page 6 of 16 Planning Commission Minutes ~ Oct. 2 7, 2016 



Commissioner Blank added that a couple other issues are the railroad maintenance vehicles that use the 
tracks which trip the crossing stop bars; he had to wait 15 minutes before the stop bar went up which caused 
a huge back up along Hwy. 30. 

City Planner Oliver asked Commissioner Blank to let our City Engineer know next time, as he is working 
with ODOT on other timing issues. ODOT did change some timing issues related to the school start & end 
times but it should not have affected the railroad cross bars. 

Commissioner Blank added that people using the cross walk were also stopped and traffic was backed up. 

Commissioner Jensen asked ifthe TSP had demand management related to off-set shift traffic; moving it 
outside of peak hours. For example, if a standard shift is 8am-5pm but the off-set shift could be 10am-7pm; 
so the employee traffic is outside the peak traffic hours. 

City Planner Oliver replied that there is language about changing the shift hours to meet the mobility 
requirements so the developer has the option of changing their hours of operation to meet the requirement. 

Commissioner Bernhard asked if this was for the development at the airport. 

Commissioner Jensen replied that it would be for any development that is large enough to trigger a 
transportation impact study. 

Commissioner Bernhard asked if the traffic we have out there now would be lowered. 

City Planner Oliver replied that it would only be something new that the commissioners would be reviewing 
as a part of Site Development Review. 

Commissioner Jensen stated that Cascade had to do a traffic study. Then gave the example; if there was 
development coming in that could require a traffic light at Hwy. 30 to meet the mobility target but ODOT 
won't allow it, then the developer could change their work hours to meet the mobility target. 

Chair Kulp asked if they should also address the salmon recovery concept. 

City Planner Oliver replied that there is a lot there plus it will come up when the flood plain ordinance is 
revised, then suggested they open the floor to resident Patrick Russell who submitted the concept plan. 

Resident Patrick Russell came to the speaker desk, who submitted a concept plan for salmon recovery; he 
thanked the commissioners for giving him time to discuss his concept plan. 
He started with the overlay zones; 
~ Overlay Zones & Credits 
The city has several overlay zones but the only overlay zone the city has for salmon recovery is the Goal 5 
Assessment, Safe Harbor which states 50' from edge of water; but that is not salmon habitat mitigation 
improvements. He would like to introduce the idea of what it would take to create a salmon habitat along an 
urban creek in the city; he brought studies to share that Metro has done in 2001 and a Title 13 Assessment of 
properties which surprisingly included the Scappoose Creek. He was unsure why, unless part of the 
watershed was within the Metro's boundaries. The Portland Metro region was trying to identify high quality 
vegetation within a certain reach of the creek and to make some sort of determination on whether that part of 
the creek should be included in some zoning regulations. The Title 13 is a section of the Metro code that 
requires counties and cities to zone for protection of riparian corridors. Their inventory of riparian corridor 
Page 7of16 Planning Commission Minutes~ Oct. 27, 2016 



did not include upland forest water so it ended up as a compromise to what they chose. A few meetings he 
has attended at Metro recommends 400' from streams for appropriate fish recovery. The concepts that are 
always discussed is flood plain protections and downtown overlay zones for economic development, but we 
need to bring in the value of fish recovery. The Scappoose Creek is already highly rated at the State and 
Federal level but the protection of it is not enforced under the Oregon Plan since it's all voluntary and left up 
to the local jurisdictions to decide if they place a value on it. Adding that every state, city & county have 
different values; stating that jurisdictions put their regulatory ordinance where their value lies. In his 
opinion, the easiest measurement that is available is the 500 year flood plain map, if you look carefully you'll 
notice it exceeds a 50' setback. That flood plain zone does provide where the primary riparian corridor 
interests are located in our area for salmon habitat. Adding that if a 500 year flood plain can be mapped then 
so can a salmon habitat. He does agree that we should wait until the Housing Needs Assessment is 
completed but a part of the inventory should actually specify homes that are within the 100 and 500 year 
flood plain plus not residential uses that are within those zones as well. So when we have discussions about 
buildable lands or housing property, that they do not include flood plain properties. Scappoose used to allow 
housing in a flood plain but now it's only allowed if you have a large lot; most sub-dividers will try to find 
out what kind of density credit they could get for land that really should not be housing while we are giving 
out density credits. 
~Permitted Use 
The other part of his concept is not only where you place your home but includes how you use your property; 
how can the city encourage the creation of salmon habitat as part of the development while also looking at 
your public properties as well. The Scappoose Mayor also pointed out to him that most of the yellow area of 
the north section of our zoning map is mostly in the 100 year flood plain; we need to figure out these hazard 
areas so when the housing needs assessment is done, it may imply that we need to push mixed use or higher 
density in our more desirable building areas. Adding that he has always argued that the Fred Meyer complex 
is a single story building with a huge parking lot with only one use; to him is a waste of land for us but not 
for a national corporation. Safeway stores do offer mixed use with residential but not Fred Meyer; so these 
types of things can start working together. He also stated that a more perplexing issue for the commission; 
everything on this east side of the highway is basically in the l 00 year flood plain but protected by the dike; a 
question for the city is if we are going to be like Sacramento and build everything we can within a diked 
property. FEMA has already told the City of Sacramento California that they have to beef-up their dikes if 
they are going to continue investing billions of dollars in urban improvements in those areas. He wonders 
how long will all the dams and dikes last; as a planning commission are you thinking 100 years and do your 
feel comfortable on how you have lead your community. 
~ Types of geographic hazards 
The last thing he tried doing on the concept outline he submitted, was the types of geographic hazards such 
as steep slope, existing mature upland forests, and implies a question to the city; do we want to make an 
effort to look at these hazard areas and define them. Asking if a 1 to 1 hazard; which can be hard to define. 
~Open Spaces 
We also need to ask how are we going to create open spaces in our city as part of our comprehensive plan; 
how do we encourage the protection of these areas in our zoning regulations vs. regulated as a negative. 
Adding that no one likes being told what they can do on their property. He doesn't expect much to happen 
now but hopefully during the upcoming town hall meeting; he's hoping for wall maps that are 4 times the 
size as the one on the wall here that shows the 100 & 500 year flood plain so people realize that a lot of work 
needs to be done. Asking how many times does a property need to flood and get assistance from our tax 
dollars for flood insurance; as opposed to working with us to buy them out like those reverse mortgages that 
allow them to live out their years on the property. 

Commissioner Bernhard stated that homes in Vernonia flooded 3 times before FEMA told them to lift their 
homes or evacuate; and that's how they ended up with a new school. 
Page 8of16 Planning Commission Minutes~ Oct. 27, 2016 



Resident Patrick Russell stated that FEMA is required by the federal courts to talk to NOAA about salmon 
recovery since those two things have to come together; if you are trying to create salmon habitat but have one 
agency that is approving the buildings that displace the habitat. Adding that there really isn't a salmon 
habitat for the Columbia River with the dams; which might be going back to courts again. 

Commissioner Bernhard asked if he knows if there have been any studies to prove that salmon are here. 

Resident Patrick Russell replied that there has already been a tremendous amount of research done by the 
watershed council by David Evans and Associates; ODFW have also done many studies and read that a state 
fishery staff who is now in Salem talked about how many salmon he thinks would come up that creek under 
better conditions, referenced 300 spawning salmon. Adding that the fisheries group would be identifying 
what the potential would be under certain conditions then it would up to the cities and counties to decide how 
to achieve that goal. 

Commissioner Blank asked if resident Patrick Russell knew what the actual count was. 

Resident Patrick Russell replied that he has asked residents nearby if they have seen any beaver, which they 
replied no; so if beaver counts are low then the salmon count will be very low. 

Chair Kulp asked about the benefits of having them. 

Resident Patrick Russell replied that NOAA fisheries have done studies in Washington and the coastal areas 
where they have found that beaver dams have triple or quadrupled the potential for the juvenile fisheries to 
occur in the area of the beaver dams plus the diversity of species that begin to populate in these areas. 
Adding that the benefits for South Scappoose is its deep in size; the beaver dams hold that sediment up that is 
coming down from Dutch Canyon by creating a bath tub that just lets the water and fish flow over. So the 
sediment is filling up behind the dam and eventually the creek bed comes back to rise up to the historic flood 
plain level area. Currently there is a deep bank which is the primary flood plain area, then there is secondary 
flood plain area. Adding that in some areas the creek bank is 30' but the flood plain bench should be flush 
with the bank. He encourages commissioners to come down to Creekview Park in his neighborhood where 
they can see the flood plain area then notice that 30' down the creek bank is the creek. Creating side 
channels would give juvenile salmon more protection during high water flows; then in the summer time the 
ground water is released with cooler waters to bring the temperature of the creeks down. Stormwater 
management agencies shade the creeks so water coming in during the summer is cooler; if not shaded then 
the creek is warmer. 

Chair Kulp asked if the creek is deeper because it can't meander the way it used to. 

Resident Patrick Russell agreed and encouraged the planning commissioners to invite water shed council 
experts to come in with ODFW to talk about South Scappoose Creek. 

Commissioner Blank stated he would like to see a mapping of an ideal creek habitat for that creek along with 
the buildable lands around it; and how would it impact it. 

Resident Patrick Russell stated that the 500 year flood is closest and the city already has it mapped. 

City Planner Oliver stated that the water shed council does have some of it available for the grant they are 
going for; which is just one piece of it. 

Page 9of16 Planning Commission Minutes~ Oct. 27, 2016 



Resident Patrick Russell stated that it is very difficult for our state fisheries to create those ideal creeks as 
every creek is unique; we could ask ODFW to gives us an example of a coastal creek similar to slope and 
water shed to South Scappoose Creek then tell us what is wrong with it. 

Commissioner Blank stated that a map showing buildable areas would be helpful. 

City Planner Oliver added that typically with our ordinances it discourages development rather than outright 
saying they can't do it. The cost to develop in those areas is generally higher so it doesn't pencil out. 

Commissioner Blank added that they often ask if they can actually build on that site but then they receive the 
geotechnical studies stating that it can be done so the commissioners can't argue with that. 

Commissioner Bernhard stated that they just need to meet certain criteria. 

Resident Patrick Russell added that across the river in Washington there were some serious issues in some of 
the communities that showed they did the geotechnical study but those geo techs are long gone by the time 
the issue happens. 

City Planner Oliver added that our hands are tied to a certain extent because if they are meeting the provision 
of the code; and if we don't permit it then we could get sued. 

Chair Kulp stated that it is something we need to prepare for in the future. 

City Planner Oliver added that if we regulate no development in the 500 year flood plain; how many 
homeowners would lose their ability to develop on their property. 

Chair Kulp added that we are limited to land as well. 

Commissioner Blank added that he went to a planning commission training session a few years ago where 
Safe Harbor was brought up; that it was what they could give the communities to meet the restrictions. There 
were many lawsuits that came out of those older rules, that it opened the door for a compromise; Safe Harbor 
wasn't the best solution but it was a solution at the time. 

Resident Patrick Russell added that Measure 49 put a damper on cities and counties wanting to protect their 
sensitive areas; the court would still buy into lower densities in hazard areas. But how low can you go 
without someone filing a suit over you saying you are being unfair. Adding that it might be better under 
public ownership; it's not the park & recreation plan but your park's natural areas & recreation plan. If cities 
are going to be serious about it then it needs to be a part of the capital improvement plan; trying to get those 
dollars up front then trying to match it with willing sellers that makes sense for them and the city. 

Commissioner Bernhard stated that the City's Veteran's Park was a good thing for the city to buy; during the 
1996 & 2007 flood the water went over the road into that area. Hopefully in the future the city can purchase 
the land on the other side of JP West Rd. where the cows are; and carry that park plan over for soccer fields. 

Resident Patrick Russell stated that Veteran's Park is a great open space but it's not a fish habitat area; even 
though two-thirds of the property is within the 100 year flood plain. This is a common problem in a lot of 
communities; two-thirds of that site really should be in flood plain natural areas not mowed lawns with 
concrete sidewalks and little league fields. Those are not fish conducive areas. 

Page 10of16 Planning Commission Minutes~ Oct. 27, 2016 



Commissioner Bernhard stated that the area might not be fish conducive but it was certainly helpful to our 
flooded community. 

Resident Patrick Russell added that he was not trying to emphasize floods as FEMA had done a pretty good 
job at identifying those; the problem is how we are going to pay for it. Global warming does affect us in the 
northwest; the areas in Portland are affected by the Cascades with more intensive rains with flash run offs, so 
the city has to be prepared to buy properties that are willing to sell after these events. Development has to 
help pay for those impacts. 

Chair Kulp asked if the parks should be more natural vegetation instead of always trimming it. 

Resident Patrick Russell agreed that the riparian corridor up to JP West Rd. is almost the delineation of the 
100 flood plain, adding that it may be a part of the engineering when they did the review at the state level to 
build it. The whole area is subject to inundation; so the issue to the whole community is how you invest your 
capital dollars efficiently and wisely. Installing little league fields that could get flooded out every year 
might be a waste of money, but it's hard to convince people of that as they see it as just a green space. We 
are now seeing that in one park in Clackamas where it has seen 2 floods that actually occurred in the 100 year 
flood plain that destroyed the improvements that were installed 30 years ago; so people are now realizing 
those improvements in the flood plain were not a good idea. 

Commissioner Bernhard added that if that area is built to accommodate the over flow then that makes more 
sense; so the play equipment won't be installed right next to the creek. 

Resident Patrick Russell asked it depends on who's looking at that space; is it a fisheries person or is it a 
park and recreation person looking at it. That whole area is a secondary flood plain area where there should 
be side channels during high water flows. The little league fields should have large wooded debris where it is 
today. 

Commissioner Blank added that the creek in Tigard floods every year and asked Resident Patrick Russell if 
he knew anything about it. 

Resident Patrick Russell doesn't like to pick on cities but said it is one of the worse at protecting the 100 year 
flood plain for non-urban use as they allow parking lots in the flood plain. Metro will also allow parking lots 
and playgrounds in the flood plain as well, however Tigard does have a little advantage over other cities; the 
Tualatin River is not a fishery as far as NOAA fisheries is concerned. The only area is in Forest Grove; 
everything else downstream is not in the NOAA salmon recovery system. So the only issue that can be 
argued is clean water and flood protection. He is just here to ask what it would take to create a fishery if that 
is a high value to the community. Mowed maintained grass is not a high quality fishery; although some of 
the agricultural areas in the Willamette Valley have found that when it floods, their drainage canals have 
salmon spawning in them. Then when it drains the salmon will follow that drainage out into the rivers or the 
creeks; it was a very surprising find for the Willamette Valley. Adding that the cattle that are grazing south 
of Veteran's Park on the other side of JP West, are creating an impervious surface and some of the worse 
creek erosion is happening right on that property. He stated we probably have not seen the worst of it but 
who has seen a 500 year flood; tell that to statesman. It's a side issue that you want to consider when doing 
the code updates. 

Chair Kulp thanked Resident Patrick Russell then recapped the code reviews; the sign code is being reviewed 
by legal counsel and Commissioner Jensen could focus on the parking regulations. 

Page 11 of 16 Planning Commission Minutes~ Oct. 27, 2016 



Commissioner Blank asked if that was how they were going to do it. 

City Planner Oliver replied she was open to ideas. 

Chair Kulp stated it might work well if they worked as a group and picked certain areas they want improved; 
so if Commissioner Jensen feels parking regulations are important then we as a group can look into it more. 

Commissioner Jensen stated that they could triage it now so that they have it ready when development comes 
in. Adding that it might not be the best but at least they can make it a little better now, then at some point it 
would get a better look a few years down. 

Chair Kulp added that maybe staff could take it and run with it in more ways than they realize. 

City Planner asked if they rolled it into their concerns when they have the TGM; let them review our parking 
standards since it completely ties into the mixed use. 

Commissioner Jensen agreed, something in writing now would be helpful. 

City Planner Oliver stated she sees both sides; the tendency now is to go away from requiring more parking 
because in 20-30 years, will people be driving cars as much as they do now. Then there are these built 
environments with massive parking lots, adding what is happening in Portland might not be appropriate for 
here but what she does see here is that we don't utilize our on-street parking the way that we could. So then 
there is the balance of what is the cost to the developer to put in that extra parking; there are a lot of 
components to it. We could just change the number in the code for example; something like studio to 2-
bedroom requires 2 spaces whereas right now its 1.5 spaces. 

Commissioner Jensen stated that Studio to I-bedroom are 1 space whereas 2-bedrooms are 1.5 spaces. 

City Planner Oliver stated that this number could be changed in the code book; as it would be very easy. 

Commissioner Jensen state what he was thinking was also adding 1 additional space per every 10 bedrooms. 

City Planner Oliver added that she has discussed this with the City Engineer; so everything could stay as it is 
but then add something about every 5 spaces would require 1 extra space. Stating that they could add 
something that would be workable and propose that change. Since it is a guest issue, it might not be 
appropriate to change it for all of them but you could add that ratio. 

Chair Kulp agreed as it will change in the future. We are mostly a flat city; how could we encourage people 
to ride their bicycle more, to encourage that type of mode of transportation. 

City Planner Oliver added that it ties right into our mixed use TGM. 

Commissioner Jens en added that they won't find examples of people adding parking requirements at this 
point as he has tried. 

City Planner Oliver added that it's not a trend. 

Page 12of16 Planning Commission Minutes~ Oct. 27, 2016 



Commissioner Jensen stated that he has tried to look at other rural communities but we will soon see more 
mixed use and multifamily developments which increases our density; and there won't be enough street 
parking for everyone. 

Chair Kulp added that it is like our open spaces as we've talked about that with the apartment complex 
(Westlane ); it looks like its crammed in there but it fits the code. 

Commissioner Bernhard asked where their parking lot was located. 

City Planner Oliver replied it is on the Pizza Vender side of the building; the parking met the intention of the 
code. Adding that the purpose of our Downtown Overlay is to encourage higher density residential in the 
commercial center. Stating that people are shocked at how it looks since we haven't had anything built like 
that here; but that is the future. 

Commissioner Jensen stated that buildings will be built up now. 

Commissioner Blank stated that the existing neighborhoods that we have here, heritage neighborhoods, 
without the sidewalks and full street improvements; everyone wants to have a sidewalk but once you put it in 
it changes the parking as people will park where there is a sidewalk. 

Commissioner Jensen added that this will take more looking into; but what is the actual city right of way on a 
lot of these streets vs. where is the private property. Some streets in St. Helens have absolutely huge right of 
ways; but some areas are a lot narrower which only leaves about 26-28' for a right of way. 

City Planner Oliver stated we do have the proper right of ways in most areas but not all areas. 

Commissioner Bernhard stated that there is already drainage issues in many of these areas; she lives in an 
area without drainage or sidewalks where the drainage is already going into people's yards so you can't just 
put in a sidewalk. 

Commissioner Jensen agreed, stating that the water table is so high that there is not a lot of transporting the 
water; the sidewalk isn't the expensive part. 

Commissioner Bernhard stated that people are always walking on 4th Street and most of the time they are in 
the middle of the road since there is no sidewalk; but it's very concerning that they have to walk in the street. 

Commissioner Jensen stated he saw a number while he was at a planning conference today; every point on a 
walkability score is worth $3,000 in home value. Ifthere is a study that supports it then an argument can be 
made for local improvement districts to be formed to build sidewalks since it is increasing the value of your 
property. The local improvement districts (LID) allows the city to be the bonding authority for the 
improvement to get it done and then it gets paid with property taxes for the next 20 years. He has seen it done 
for railroad quiet zones in East Vancouver where the LID passed and it worked out very well and increased 
their property values as the trains are not honking in those areas anymore. 

Commissioner Bernhard added that Columbia City also has a quiet zone. 

Chair Kulp asked if that would work for everyone to just start reviewing Title/Chapter 17. Adding that after 
the joint meeting with City Council for the Housing Needs kick off; they could put together another 
workshop. 
Page 13of16 Planning Commission Minutes~ Oct. 27, 2016 



6.0 COMMUNICATIONS 
6.1 Calendar Check 

City Planner Oliver stated that they would not be meeting in November as she would be out of town the 10th 
then the 24th is Thanksgiving. Adding that December gth would be the overlay's for west of the airport and 
also the annexation application for 350 acres east of the airport; as part of the UGB expansion. The overlay 
is an airport employment overlay, there are 2 different ones for the west side which is already in the city. 
Once the east side gets annexed in then that overlay will be done then. The following Thursday would be 
Dec. 22nd the week of Christmas; if commissioners want to meet that week she would be in town. 

Commissioner Bernhard asked if there was something we have to address. 

City Planner Oliver stated there is nothing that we have to address now. 

Commissioner Bernhard stated it is tough during the holidays since everyone has different schedules. 

Commissioner Blank asked about the December 8th meeting; if there are other applications pending. 

City Planner Oliver stated there are but they are working to re-submit comments since their application was 
deemed incomplete. So for the December gth meeting it would just be the annexation and the overlay zones. 
In January we will have a subdivision application and a site development review for a multifamily 
development. 

Commissioner Bernhard asked where the subdivision & multifamily development was located. 

City Planner Oliver replied the subdivision would connect Keys Crest to JP West by Meacham Lane; its 8 
lots but one lot is an existing home so only 7 buildable lots and the multifamily development is across from 
the new multifamily on East Columbia. 

6.2 Commission Comments 

There were none. 

6.3 Staff Comments 

City Planner Oliver thanked everyone for coming tonight, that she has been at a planning conference and got 
to go out to the new orange Max line in Milwaukie to meet the mayor there and talk to them about their 
challenges. Today the conference was at the Convention center with several different sessions and she will 
be there all day tomorrow as well. 

Commissioner Blank asked how she liked the construction in Milwaukie and if the community embraced it. 

City Planner Oliver stated the construction is done but it depends who you ask; the person doing the tour was 
the landscape architect that designed all the platforms and found all the artists. He described the process as 
very engaging and positive because they had a voice in the project and could volunteer their time to do some 
of the plantings in the riparian areas. 

Commissioner Blank stated he really likes to see all that art and would like to see more of it here. 

Page 14of16 Planning Commission Minutes~ Oct. 27, 2016 



City Planner Oliver agreed that it would great to have an art commission here as there are plenty of artists in 
Scappoose that would have a great time. 

Commissioner Bernhard added that she thought the City of St. Helens had an art commission that 
encompassed us and set up different grants. 

City Planner Oliver replied that it was for the City of St. Helens; and that would be wonderful here. Possibly 
a City Council goal for next year. 

Commissioner Blank stated it was called the Columbia County Cultural Coalition that has grants that could 
go everywhere; the art and sculptures are just within the City of St. Helens. 

Chair Kulp asked who leads it. 

City Planner Oliver replied that they probably have a staff member then their commissioners are volunteers. 

Commissioner Bernhard added that Teresa Knight has been heavily involved with all the art in St. Helens; 
but really thought it was county wide grants. 

Commissioner Shoemaker added that Al and Kannikar Peterson (AKAAN) are very involved and committed 
to the St. Helens art commission. 

Commissioner Bernhard stated that they are always doing different projects like the dog event. 

City Planner Oliver stated she really sees this tying into Economic Development as well; and would like to 
see one of our future RARE participants take on the communications and branding of the city. 

Chair Kulp stated that city staff Alexandra Rains has that art background. 

City Planner Oliver added that her dad makes jewelry but she is committee-out and all booked up. 

Commissioner Blank stated that one frustration he sees is that some of the greatest places for art is owned by 
ODOT; the right of way along Hwy. 30. 

City Planner Oliver stated that we could get creative and put it throughout town as it would add a lot. 

Commissioner Shoemaker stated he likes that the city is working with Michael Curry to make the sculptural 
fountain art at Heritage Park. It's already kicked off as a first step. 

City Planner Oliver stated we could add a lot more art to Heritage Park and make it a show piece. 

Commissioner Shoemaker stated that other cities have art councils that they have funding for; but we already 
have all the architecture in place with the Watts House and the fountain plus the other pieces. Adding that 
everyone has a different taste as to what is art and what is not; like the issue that City of St. Helens went 
through. But it would great if we had businesses and community leaders to help with some kind of funding 
or basic mechanism to fund it as it ties into a museum and art displays so we have the components. 

Commissioner Blank added that if you go to McMinnville or Aumsville; its art and its downtown creates that 
vitality. 
Page 15of16 Planning Commission Minutes~ Oct. 27, 2016 



Commissioner Shoemaker agreed like in downtown Portland along the water front with the fountain and the 
park together. 

Chair Kulp added that she saw that in Australia as well; there were all kinds of things together and it was 
filled with families. 
(multiple discussions about park art ideas) 

Commissioner Jensen stated that this is something we could look at when we review commercial and mixed 
use code review; how we can build art into it. 

City Planner Oliver added that there are some places that have a percentage of the project's budget going 
towards art; like 1 %. 

Commissioner Jensen says he has seen that on public developments but not private developments; but it 
could still be a concept. 

City Planner Oliver added that it could be an incentive. 

Chair Kulp asked if the city could commit some of the fees to art. 

City Planner Oliver agreed, if it was a priority then we could build it into the budget. For example the art 
committee has 10,000 a year to spend. But city council would have to make it one of their priorities. 

Commissioner Blank stated that the 2nd annual bicycle event is supposed to happen, it would be great to 
create some art along those trails and maybe a bicycle repair station that could be done in an art-like way. 

City Planner Oliver stated she saw that in Milwaukie; they have a metal art stand with bicycle related cut outs 
but there were retractable pulleys with all the different tools you could use to repair your bike. 

Commissioner Bernhard asked about the joint planning commission and city council meeting on the 7th. 

City Planner Oliver agreed it starts at 6pm and it's the housing needs kick off; they will be serving pizza. 

7.0 ADJOURNMENT 

Chair Kulp closed the meeting at 8:45pm 

Attest: 

~,Jdl J(491& EiiZ eth Happai;,O JiC(; Administrator III 

Page 16of16 Planning Commission Minutes~ Oct. 27, 2016 


